Public Document Pack

Date of Thursday, 25th June, 2020

meeting

Time 7.00 pm

Venue Finance, Assets and Performance Scrutiny Committee - Virtual

Meeting - Conference

Contact Geoff Durham 742222



Castle House Barracks Road Newcastle-under-Lyme Staffordshire ST5 1BL

Finance, Assets & Performance Scrutiny Committee

AGENDA

PART 1 - OPEN AGENDA

- 1 APOLOGIES
- 2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
- 3 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

(Pages 3 - 6)

To consider the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 January, 2020

4 CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC UPDATE

(Pages 7 - 16)

5 URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B (4) of the Local Government Act 1972

6 DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION

To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the attached report, because it is likely that there will be disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs contained within Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Members: Councillors Mark Holland (Chair), Bert Proctor (Vice-Chair), Mrs Gillian Burnett, Andrew Fear,

Tony Kearon, Mike Stubbs, Paul Waring, Kyle Robinson, Mrs Amelia Rout, Graham Hutton,

Ms Sarah Pickup, Stephen Sweeney and Simon Tagg

Note: only the following Members from the full membership who have been nominated to attend this Zoom meeting are required:

Councillors Mark Holland (Chair), Bert Proctor (Vice Chair), Mrs Gillian Burnett, Graham Hutton, Ms Sarah Pickup, Kyle Robinson and Mike Stubbs,

Portfolio Holders: Councillors Simon Tagg and Stephen Sweeney

Contacting the Council: Switchboard 01782 717717 . Text 07800 140048

Email webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk. www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

SUBSTITUTE MEMBER SCHEME (Appendix 9, Section 4 of Constitution)

The Constitution provides for the appointment of Substitute members to attend Committees. The named Substitutes for this meeting are listed below:-

Substitute Members: John Cooper Mrs Elizabeth Shenton

John Tagg Dave Jones Kenneth Owen Andrew Parker

Barry Panter

If you are unable to attend this meeting and wish to appoint a Substitute to attend in your place you need to:

Identify a Substitute member from the list above who is able to attend on your behalf

 Notify the Chairman of the Committee (at least 24 hours before the meeting is due to take place) NB Only 2 Substitutes per political group are allowed for each meeting and your Chairman will advise you on whether that number has been reached

Online Committee Meeting Joining Instructions

This meeting will be held virtually using Zoom.

Watching the Meeting

You can attend the meeting in the following ways:

You can attend the meeting online at: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87367242153

You can also use the Zoom App or telephone 0330 088 5830 or 0131 460 1196

The Conference ID for telephone and Zoom App users is: 873 6724 2153

You do not require a password or pre-registration to access this committee meeting.

Please note, as an attendee you will only be able to watch the meeting. You will not be able to vote, ask questions or discuss the materials presented to the committee..

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3 Finance, Assets & Performance Scrutiny Committee - 16/01/20

FINANCE, ASSETS & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Thursday, 16th January, 2020 Time of Commencement: 7.00 pm

Present: Councillor Helena Maxfield (Chair)

Councillors: G. Burnett P Waring S. Pickup

A. Fear K. Robinson K. Owen

M. Stubbs G. Hutton

Officers: Jayne Briscoe Democratic Services Officer

Roger Tait Head of Operations

Daniel Dickinson Head of Legal /Monitoring

Officer

Craig Turner Finance Manager

Also in attendance: Portfolio Holder for Leisure

Culture and Heritage

Councillor S Sweeney Portfolio Holder for Finance

and Efficiency

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillor Proctor (represented by Councillor Owen) and Councillor Rout.

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 16 DECEMBER 2019

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2019 be approved as a correct record subject to the inclusion of Councillor Mrs G Burnett in the list of Members present.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

4. REVENUE/CAPITAL BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX

The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director (Resources and Support Services) on Revenue and Capital Budgets and Strategies 2020/21.

The purpose of the report was to review progress on the completion of revenue and capital budgets for 2020/21 to 2024/25. The report also included drafts of the Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy (updated for 2020/21), the Capital Strategy for 2020/30, the Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21 and the Investment Strategy for 2020/21. The reports gave an opportunity for the Scrutiny Committee to consider and make any recommendations prior to submission to Full Council for final approval.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Efficiency, Councillor Stephen Sweeney, commended the work undertaken by the officers in the Finance Department.

1

In discussing the report, Members raised the following issues or queries:

- Was there a risk arising from the restructure of the Revenues and Benefits/Customer Services team and would there be increased pressure on front line staff? In response, Members were advised that the changes would mean a bigger pool of staff from which to draw upon; there would be training provided and some regrading of posts to reflect changed roles. Members suggested the service should be monitored to ensure a consistently good service was provided to residents.
- Congratulations were offered on the Empty Homes Strategy although there were some concerns around the ability to continue to offer that level of service.
- Members felt that Local Government should be allowed greater responsibility for raising its own funds; the Council was delivering all statutory services along with additional services. If there was greater freedom to raise funding there would be more accountability at Local Government level.
- Members asked about the Waste Service and staff being taken off their roles on Streetscene to carry out recycling and waste disposal duties. Members were advised that this was a temporary measure and staff would be returned to street cleansing roles in due course.

Agreed: that the report be noted with thanks and congratulations to the officers involved.

5. SCALE OF FEES AND CHARGES

Councillor Sweeney, Portfolio Holder for Finance and Efficiency, presented the list of proposed fees and charges for introduction from 1 April 2020. The proposals followed the Council's Charging Policy which had been approved on 10 September 2014.

Agreed: that the report be noted.

6. WORK PROGRAMME

The Chief Executive submitted the Work Programme 2019/20.

Agreed: that the report be noted.

7. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no members of the public present at the meeting.

8. **URGENT BUSINESS**

There were no items of urgent business.

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING - THURSDAY 19 MARCH 2020

19 March 2020.

10. **DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION**

Page 4

Finance, Assets & Performance Scrutiny Committee - 16/01/20

Agreed: That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

11. SCALE OF FEES AND CHARGES - CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX

The Committee considered the confidential report on the scale of fees and charges for 2020/21.

Agreed: that the report be noted.

Chair

Meeting concluded at 7.45 pm

This page is intentionally left blank

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM'S REPORT TO

Finance Assets and Performance Scrutiny Committee 25 June 2020

Report Title: Coronavirus Pandemic Update

Submitted by: Chief Executive

<u>Portfolios:</u> Corporate and Service Improvement, People and Partnerships; and Finance and

Efficiency

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To provide the Committee with a Covid-19 update in terms of the issues arising and actions taken within the service areas that fall under the Committee's remit.

Recommendation

That the Committee receives the report and offers feedback to Cabinet

Reasons

To provide the Committee with the opportunity to scrutinise actions undertaken to date and the proposals for the next phases of recovery.

1. <u>Background</u>

- 1.1 The Coronavirus pandemic is the greatest single risk to the health and wellbeing of this country since the Second World War. In February 2020 the Council established an Incident Management Team to plan the Council's response, ensuring that support to local residents and businesses was provided, that Council services were maintained, and the welfare of officers and members protected.
- 1.2 Informal Cabinet has been regularly briefed on the work being progressed, including a daily briefing with the Leader. The approach adopted is based on existing business contingency arrangements which have put the Council in a good position to respond rapidly and effectively.
- 1.3 The Incident Management Team interfaces with a range of groups which have been set up countywide to co-ordinate the response to the pandemic, including the Strategic Coordinating Group, and working groups on mortality management and vulnerability.
- 1.4 Cabinet received a report on the Council's response work at its meetings on 22 April and 20 May. The 22 April report focused predominantly on the initial impact of the pandemic on Council services, and its immediate response to the pandemic. The 20 May report provided an update on those matters and outlined the work streams in the Council's "Back on Track" recovery programme following the (then) recently announced government recovery strategy.

Page 7



1.5 The two Cabinet reports are available as background documents.

2. **Issues**

- 2.1 Insofar as the service areas within the remit of this committee are concerned, issues arise in the following areas:-
 - Financial Impact
 - People and Organisational Development
 - Health and Safety
 - Customer and Digital Services
 - Legal and Democratic Services
- 2.2 Appendix 1 deals with each topic in more detail.

3. **Proposal**

3.1 That the Committee receives the report and offers feedback to Cabinet.

4. Reasons for Proposed Solution

4.1 So that there is an opportunity to scrutinise the Council's response to the CV-19 pandemic and to offer feedback to Cabinet on the same.

5. Options Considered

5.1 Not Applicable.

6. <u>Legal and Statutory Implications</u>

6.1 There are no such implications arising directly from this report. Addressing the impact of Coronavirus locally has involved adjustment to some service provision. When making such changes there are a number of legal and statutory implications to take into account. These are all appropriately factored into decision taking by the Incident Management Team.

7. **Equality Impact Assessment**

7.1 There are no equality implications arising directly from this report. Members will, however, note the particular emphasis placed on supporting vulnerable people in the Council's response to the pandemic.

8. Financial and Resource Implications

8.1 The Council's General Fund balance as at 31st March 2019 was £1.548m. Careful monitoring of the financial position will be required over coming weeks and months leading to prompt corrective action where necessary to ensure that reserves are not exhausted and the Council remains in a position of being able to deliver a balanced budget position in the current financial year and beyond.

9. Major Risks

9.1 There are a number of risks associated with the Pandemic and the Council's response to it. These are discussed in more detail in Appendix 1.



10. Sustainability and Climate Change Implications

10.1 There are no such implications arising from this report. Any direct implications for sustainability and climate change are discussed, where relevant, in reports dealing with the implementation of specific measures that give rise to the same.

11. Key Decision Information

11.1 This report does not relate to a Key Decision.

12. Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions

12.1 Cabinet Resolutions of 22 April and 20 May.

13. <u>List of Appendices</u>

13.1 Appendix 1 – Discussion Paper – CV-19 implications for the Finance, Assets and Performance Scrutiny Committee

14. **Background Papers**

14.1 Cabinet reports referred to:-

https://moderngov.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=118&Year=0





NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM'S REPORT TO

Finance Assets and Performance Scrutiny Committee 25 June 2020

Appendix 1 Discussion Paper: CV-19 implications for the Finance, Assets and Performance Scrutiny Committee

Customer and Digital Services

- 1. In the months leading up to the lockdown, the Council had already invested to ensure that staff could effectively work on a remote basis if necessary. This commenced as part of the move to Castle House, and put the Council in a very good positon when Coronavirus was first emerging as an issue. In early-mid March, the ICT team proactively encouraged those members of staff who had not previously worked from home to take equipment and test it, in anticipation of lockdown. 70 additional members of staff were kitted out to work from home within the last 2 weeks before lockdown. By the time lockdown was announced on Friday March 20th, Customer & Digital Services were already effectively working from home.
- 2. In addition to securing remote work for its own service, the Customer and Digital Services team engaged across the Council to ensure other services could also address the needs of changing service environment. Including:
 - Switching the Legal team to an online signature platform for contract signing;
 - Enabling online committee meetings using video conferencing for committee meetings;
 - Launching an online video streaming service for Cremation ceremonies;
 - Supporting staff and members with video conferencing facilities;
 - Reviewing and relaunching several online forms to make services available more easily;
 - Facilitating the processing of Business Support Grant schemes.
- 3. The Council's general Contact Centre has seen a significant increase in the number of calls particularly for benefits related enquiries which have spiked in line with national trends and Garden Waste Subscriptions. Despite a daily increase in calls, the service has actually performed ahead of target, with less than 6% being abandoned and an average call answering time of 1 minute 38 seconds.
- 4. The processing times for housing benefits has risen slightly during the first two months of the year with new cases taking 25.06 days in May rising from 22.14 days in March whilst the change of circumstances time has fallen to under 4 days in May. The trend of HB cases reducing month on month as claimants switch to universal credit has continued but slowed slightly in the first 2 months of this year. The caseload was 5374 at the end of May compared to 6487 in March 2019.
- 5. Predictably we have seen a huge rise in the number of claims for Council Tax Reduction with 496 claims in March, 1278 in April and 886 in May. A large number of claims made via Universal credit were later cancelled as details of the furlough scheme were announced. There can be a delay in resolving these claims as we have to wait for Universal credit to be confirmed in the vast majority of cases but this has led to 467 extra cases being added to the caseload in April, increasing it from 8560 to 9066 cases.
- 6. Following the release of updated software to enable processing of the Council Tax Hardship Fund reductions of up to £150.00 reduction were applied to 4313 accounts during May. Refunds were issued



- to around 120 people who had made payment this year where we hold bank details and letters were sent to a further 400 asking them to provide bank details to claim the refund. The expanded rates relief has also been applied to the accounts of eligible business rates payers.
- 7. As the Council implements its recovery plan a key focus of this service will be to continue to support remote working, as it will be some time before there is a return to full office occupation. In addition, the digital team will be central to efforts to secure longer term efficiencies from some of the changed business practices, and technology adoption, which has been driven by the pandemic.

People and Organisational Development

The People and Organisational Development team have been central to the Council's response to the pandemic, developing new policies to ensure fair and consistent practice across the workforce. This has been particularly important given that we have some colleagues who can work effectively from home and some whose roles simply do not facilitate this (e.g. Waste & Recycling, and Streetscene teams). Key work strands included:

- Shielding for clinically vulnerable, encouraging working from home where possible, and supporting those unable to do so;
- Absence management arrangements for individuals with suspected Covid, diagnosed Covid, and colleagues who were in contact with these individuals. This includes implementing government guidance on self-isolation and suspending usual sickness absence triggers for Covid related absences.
- Recognising that the lockdown has impacted on people in different ways depending on their
 personal circumstances arrangements were put in place to enable colleagues to work more flexibly
 and at different times of the day. There has been a particular emphasis on flexibilities around those
 with caring commitments, and those themselves shielding in vulnerable groups. Flexitime and core
 hours schemes have been suspended.
- Where staff have been required to continue to work on site, Risk Assessments have been
 undertaken to ensure safety which has resulted in changes to some operational models, for
 example, changes made within Waste and Recycling services to limit the number of officers working
 in a single cab at any one time. Additional Personal Protective Equipment has been sourced,
 additional cleaning regimes and resources have been put in place to ensure the safety of staff.
- Re-assigning staff to meet service demands the key area where this occurred was in Waste and Recycling, where colleagues from Streetscene were reassigned to ensure waste collection services continued. In addition colleagues from J2 were re-assigned to establish a call handling team supporting the vulnerable, promoting take up of business grants, and taking pressure off Customer Services by dealing with calls related to the new recycling service. A lifeguard from J2 has retrained as a Cremator Operator during the period of J2's closure, to provide much needed capacity and resilience in Bereavement Services.
- A Collective Agreement was negotiated with recognised Trade Union colleagues to Furlough staff
 unable to work due to Covid-19 and this will positively impact on the council's financial position with
 no detriment to staff.
- 8. A specific focus of the People and OD Team since the start of lockdown has been the support both the physical and mental health of staff. Recognising that working from home or in different ways can impact on staff, regular advice has been provided for staff regarding developing a healthy routine, healthy eating and keeping active. Advice has been shared both by email and on the organisation's intranet pages.



- 9. The council has signed up to VIVUP, an online wellbeing platform which provides staff with free access to health and wellbeing advice as well as access to a 24/7 phone line should people need some support with their wellbeing at any time.
- 10. As we consider a move to a recovery model, departmental Risk Assessments are being produced in partnership with Trade Unions to ensure that any sites and services looking to re-open do so in line with Covid-Secure requirements. Furthermore, as officers return to the workplace, individual Risk Assessments will be undertaken where necessary, to account for a diverse range of personal circumstances including vulnerability of the individual or any householders. We will continue to review our wellbeing work stream to ensure that the needs of staff are met accounting for flexible circumstances.
- 11. The Team is supporting the Back on Track work and reviewing policies, supporting the Risk Assessment process and continuing to work in partnership with Trade Unions to ensure a safe, fair, efficient and supportive model of service delivery.

Legal and Democratic Services

- 12. Government introduced Regulations on 4 April 2020 enabling local authorities to hold committee meetings using telephone/video conferencing technology. Before the Regulations were introduced, the Chief Executive used video conferencing technology to determine some planning and licensing matters in order to keep business moving. He did so under the existing urgency procedures in the Council's constitution, after consulting with the respective Chairs and Vice Chairs and hearing from applicants where necessary.
- 13. Since the introduction of the Regulations, video conferencing technology has been used to hold Cabinet, Planning, Audit and Standards, Licensing and Public Protection and Public Protection Sub-Committee meetings. With the exception of Cabinet and Audit & Standards, which met with its usual membership, committee meetings have been taking place on a reduced membership, whilst maintaining political proportionality to allow better management of the virtual meetings, as agreed by the political Group Leaders.
- 14. Wherever possible, the usual requirements in terms of agenda publication have been observed, and the process for calling-in Key Decisions remains operational. The technology enables members of the public to observe and, where provided for in our constitution, participate in meetings.
- 15. These arrangements were agreed and kept under review by the Group Leaders, avoiding the need to make any amendments to the Constitution. The approach taken was to try and avoid diverting officer resource away from urgent service delivery and pandemic response work. It was also important to keep the scale manageable in terms of becoming familiar with new technology and ways of working.
- 16. The requirement to hold an Annual Meeting was specifically dis-applied by the Regulations and any appointments that are ordinarily made at Annual Council continue until the next Annual Meeting is held.
- 17. In the main, virtual meetings on a reduced membership where appropriate have proven to be successful and efficient. In accordance with good practice, those involved to date will be surveyed to understand their experience of the process, and to see what improvements can be made.

Financial Impact

18. The Pandemic has had a significant impact on the Council's financial position through a combination of lost income and additional costs. Cabinet was advised in the April 2020 report of the prospect of the Council's S151 officer needing to issue a S114 notice to Council unless the financial situation could be



addressed in order to secure a balanced budget position. The Council actively lobbied both through our local Members of Parliament and through national networks as part of sector wide lobbying, to press the case for appropriate Government support to address Covid-19 related costs and loss of income. Subsequently, the Council was allocated additional Government support of almost £1.3m to support its delivery of Covid related activity and the impact of the pandemic on the Council's income. This additional funding is sufficient to return the Council to a balanced budget position in the short term and ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet its outgoings.

- 19. The Council's revenue budget relies on service income from fees and charges of c£850k per month across a wide range of services. A number of the Council's services have closed to the public, e.g. Jubilee 2, Markets and the Museum, there is also likely to be a significantly reduced demand for a number of other services. The Council has been actively monitoring the impact of the lockdown and the working practices required to ensure safe practice. Across the business, it is estimated that net income of c.£276k will be lost during each month that the lockdown prevails. This is slightly lower than reported in May, and reflects increased income from recycling credits as well as action taken to minimise associated costs. The majority of this income loss relates to J2 leisure memberships, parking, court fees and recycling income.
- 20. In addition to the loss of income, the Council is experiencing additional costs in some areas, with the most significant of these being in Waste & Recycling where additional costs of treating recycling product amounts to over £65k per month. Additional costs have also been incurred in vehicle hire and staffing in order to maintain the service whilst complying as far as possible with the Government's social distancing requirements. Additional costs are also being incurred in emergency accommodation for homeless people, rough sleepers and domestic abuse victims and interest costs.
- 21. Across the Council additional costs amount to c£147k per month. Action is being taken to minimise costs and conserve cash, including a temporary freeze on recruitment and non-essential expenditure, deferral of some capital expenditure and a review of contributions to earmarked reserves. Detailed financial risk assessments are also being carried out on a monthly basis.
- 22. Thus far we have not seen a significant reduction in the amount of Council Tax collected. However, it is estimated that the cost to the Council of the possible increased claimant count for Council Tax Support will be c£148k. Business rates collection during April and May was down 4.89% on the same period last year after adjusting for reliefs. Assuming that some of this lost revenue is recovered in the second half of the year the likely collection fund deficit for 2020/21 will be between £550k and £730k. This would represent a total year on year reduction in revenue of £1.4m to £1.6m as the Council would normally expect to generate a collection fund surplus of c£850k. The impact on either business rates collection (due to business failure) or Council Tax collection (due to non-payment) will materialise in 2021/22.
- 23. The longer term consequences of the Coronavirus on the Council's financial position will depend significantly on duration of the lockdown and on the scale and timing of further Government financial support. The Council is actively lobbying our local Members of Parliament and through national networks as part of the wider public sector family, to make the case for further Government support to address Covid-19 related costs and loss of income. In the meantime detailed financial risk assessments are being carried out on a monthly basis.

Recovery

24. With the lockdown beginning to be eased, efforts are now increasingly focused on recovery, and ensuring that both the Council and the Borough get "Back on Track" – getting the economy back to its pre-lockdown position as swiftly and safely as possible. A recovery plan has been prepared, with six distinct work streams – two internally focused and four externally focused. Cabinet will oversee the



- implementation of the recovery plan, with portfolio holders working closely with the Executive Management Team colleagues leading on each work stream
- 25. The work stream "Stepping-up Council Services" deals with bringing Council services back to their original service capacities in line with Government guidance for re-opening the economy. It is anticipated that some services will experience significant spikes in demand once the economy begins to re-open, and such spikes will need to be carefully planned for within overall capacity.
- 26. A significant part of this work is about ensuring that robust Risk Assessments are prepared for each site that the Council operates, and that additional controls are being planned for implementation including:
 - Protective cough screens to any public facing counters
 - Adapting services to reduce the need for face to face contact, utilising digital media and phone facilities
 - Personal assessments for any staff classed as vulnerable in public facing roles where their service is re-commencing
 - Introducing one way flows around buildings where possible, including signage
 - Establishing new capacity limits for offices, meeting rooms, etc
 - Managing break-out / canteen facilities to ensure social distancing is possible, and cleanliness is maintained at adequate levels
 - Ensuring appropriate hygiene practice is in place across the multiple aspects of building occupation, ranging from self-clean desk facilities to arrangements for general cleaning.
- 27. A plan is in development for the medium term financial recovery of the organisation, including a clear strategy for the Council to build up its financial resilience and replenish revenue reserves to a prudent level following the Pandemic given the many financial risks and uncertainties that will persist for the foreseeable future.
- 28. Key actions include:
 - Refreshing the MTFS on the basis of the latest financial forecasts;
 - Reassessing corporate priorities in the face of changing service demands and a reduced tax base;
 - Risk assessing all 2020-21 and 2021-22 savings proposals;
 - Revisiting the digital delivery business case with a view to accelerating delivery of projects that will generate revenue savings; and
 - Bringing forward a suite of "invest to save" and commercial investment proposals for consideration as part of the 2021-22 budget process.

Conclusion

- 29. During the lockdown phase of the pandemic, the Council has successfully worked to keep essential services going through deployment of technology. This has allowed large scale home working, web and telephone based customer services, and video-conferencing for committee meetings. This has been facilitated by detailed work by HR colleagues, working closely with the trades unions to ensure that fair and equitable business practices have been deployed.
- 30. The pandemic has had a significant impact on the Council's finances, with the immediate impact being mitigated by funding provided by central government. The Council's recovery plan includes specific actions to mitigate the medium and long term impacts of the pandemic of the Council's financial position.

